10 JANUARY 2019

NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

Minutes of a meeting of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel held in the Council Chamber, Appletree Court, Lyndhurst on Thursday, 10 January 2019

* Cllr W S Rippon-Swaine (Chairman)
* Cllr Ms L C Ford (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:	Councillors:		
P J Armstrong * Mrs S M Bennison * G R Blunden * Mrs F Carpenter	 * A T Glass * Mrs R Matcham J M Olliff-Cooper * D M S Poole 		
*Present			
In attendance:			
Councillors:	Councillors:		
E J Heron	Mrs A J Hoare		
Officers Attending:			
C Read, Ms V Beechey, Miss J Debnam, R Lane and C Noble			

Apologies:

Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs Armstrong and Olliff-Cooper.

30 MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2018 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

31 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made by any member in connection with an agenda item.

32 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

No issues were raised in the public participation period.

33 PORTFOLIO HOLDERS' REPORTS

Cllr Hoare advised the Panel that the national Keep Britain Tidy Spring Clean campaign this year would be held between 22 March and 22 April, allowing plenty of time for local authorities to make arrangements and hold events.

The initiative to recycle Christmas trees had been extremely successful this year, with an extra chipper being needed to meet the demand.

34 HYTHE CAR PARKING

Following the sale of the St John's Street car park in Hythe, for the construction of a supermarket, the Panel was advised of the outcome of monitoring to establish whether there was still sufficient car parking capacity in the village. The results of the monitoring were attached as Appendix 1 to Report Item 5.

The monitoring had established that the only time there was some pressure on capacity was on Tuesdays, market day. Even during the run-up to Christmas, which was historically a busy time, there had been sufficient parking available. In the longer term, once the new supermarket was open and the initial surge of interest had normalised, the use and capacity situation would be reviewed again, to see if there was the need for additional spaces. Plans had been drawn up to provide additional spaces in the village, but it was important not to incur unnecessary expenditure should the current capacity be sufficient. It was also likely that, once open, the supermarket's car park would contribute to the parking available as customers would be able to shop there and leave their car while they went to other premises in the village centre.

The Panel agreed that the Portfolio Holder should be advised that, in their view, no additional car parking spaces were required at this time, but that following the opening of the supermarket, monitoring should continue to establish future need. A report should be submitted to this Panel towards the end of 2019.

35 WASTE AND RECYCLING UPDATE - HAMPSHIRE AND THE NEW FOREST

The Panel received a presentation from Chris Noble, the Service Manager Waste and Transport, and Vicky Beechey, Head of Project Integra, on the following topics:

- The National Context and Waste Strategy
- Project Integra Update
- Waste Composition Analysis Results
- The District Council's Recycling Performance.

It was agreed that the presentation would be circulated to Members of the Panel.

The Panel noted that the targets for recycling municipal waste would be challenging to meet at 55% by 2025; 60% by 2030 and 65% by 2035. This Council's current performance was 34%. It was however currently difficult to decide a way forward as it was expected that the Government, in its drive to improve performance nationally and to seek greater consistency, would issue guidance on the materials that should be collected and the collection method. This could have major implications for this District. Until the Government's requirements were known, it was not possible to plan locally. Food waste and a wider range of plastics were likely to be the priorities.

10 JANUARY 2019

The Government's Waste and Resources Strategy would be based on 5 pillars:

- Achieving zero 'avoidable' waste by 2050
- Phasing out 'avoidable' plastic waste
- New recycling and waste targets
- Stopping food waste going to landfill by 2030
- Reforming the PRN system

A factor that could mitigate against the Council's percentage capture of recyclable materials was the potential introduction of deposit return schemes for some materials, such as bottles, which would encourage people to return them to supermarkets or vending machines, rather than including them in the Council's collection, where they would see no financial return. The potential scale of any effect would depend on the operational details of the scheme.

There would be a change in emphasis away from the recycling of materials towards a more circular resource economy, including a greater role for the repair of items, rather than their replacement; and placing much greater responsibility on the manufacturer for meeting the end of life costs of their products. This would significantly increase the proportion of the disposal costs that producers paid, from around 10% currently to nearer 100%.

During 2018 Project Integra had made progress on a number of issues:

- Project Integra's Action plan;
- Fly-tipping partnership in particular joint initiatives with other agencies such as the police who could stop and search vehicles;
- Waste Composition Analysis the initial results for this District being reported later in the presentation
- Driver training (joint with local authorities) to increase driver safely
- Whole systems costs reporting

For 2019, work would continue to implement the Government's Waste and Resources Strategy; to undertake necessary consultations; to respond to the Year of Green Action and to review the Project Integra Action Plan. There would also be work to seek to achieve behavioural changes to reduce the use of resources, reflecting the waste hierarchy with waste prevention and then re-use being the preferred options.

The Waste Composition Analysis had looked at all the waste collected from a sample of households selected from across the district and reflecting a range of socio-economic groups. This process had established both the degree of contamination of the collected recyclable materials, and the nature of the contamination; and also the amount of material, such as paper and glass, within the residual waste stream that should have been separated out for recycling. This detailed information would be used to inform future initiatives, including the work to influence behaviour change.

Members reiterated their continued support for the promotion of home composting, even though this would reduce the amount of recyclable material collected by the Council. It was more consistent with the waste hierarchy to home compost.

10 JANUARY 2019

In answer to questions about the collection and use of food waste, the Panel was advised that the success of any scheme would be likely to be dependent on the funding made available by Government. Such schemes had been successful where there had been effective implementation that encouraged participation. Food waste could be composted and also processed through an anaerobic digestion process allowing power generation.

The Panel noted that waste collection in this District was currently one of the most expensive in the county, but this was reflective of the continuing weekly black bag residual waste collections.

The Panel was requested to appoint a Task and Finish Group to look at future arrangements for the collection of textiles through bring banks on council-owned car parks.

RESOLVED:

That Cllrs Bennison, Glass and Matcham be appointed to serve on the Textile Bank Task and Finish Group and that up to 3 additional members be recruited from Council Members who are not on the Panel.

36 WORK PROGRAMME

RESOLVED:

That the work programme attached as Appendix 1 to these minutes be approved to guide the Panel's activities over the coming months.

CHAIRMAN

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL – 10 JANUARY 2019.

WORK PROGRAMME

ITEM	OBJECTIVE	METHOD	LEAD OFFICER		
14 MARCH 2019					
Fuel/Emission Efficient Vehicles	To be updated on options for the Council's Fleet and the establishment of the necessary support infrastructure (Rapid Charging Points)	Task and Finish Group Report	Colin Read, Chris Noble/ Rob Lane		
Strategy for Coastal Funding	To consider the findings and recommendations of the task and finish group	Task and Finish Group Report	Peter Ferguson		

For later consideration				
Textile Bank Task and Finish Group	To consider future arrangements for the collection of textiles through collection bins on council-owned car parks, to include the potential income generation and use of that income	Task and Finish Group Report	Chris Noble	
Environmental Strategy	To consider the draft environmental strategy that will develop an overarching framework for the Council's environmental activities	Officer report	Colin Read	

Car Parking in Hythe	To consider the car parking provision within Hythe to see if additional capacity is required once the demand generated by the Lidl Supermarket on St John's Street has been	Officer report	David Hurd/Robert Lane
	John's Street has been established through further monitoring.		